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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Highlands, set back approximately 200' from Wisconsin Avenue on a

slight rise, is approached by a semi-circular drive. Facing southwest, this
late Gegrgian, yellow rubblestone country house has a central block 45' 3
bays across the front) by 35' deep with a gabled roof and one large stone and
brick chimney at each gabled end. Two lower, modified- -gambrel-roofed wings,
19' (one bay across the front) by 48' (3 bays deep) flank the central block
and project beyond it in the front and rear so that the house is H- -shaped in
plan., Another low wing to the northwest of a corresponding rubblestone con-
struction was erected by Admiral Grayson in 1935, Due to the sloping site,
the main block stands 2% stories above grade in front and 3% in the rear,
while the two wings are one-story high in front and two in the rear.

The principal exterior changes to the house since its erection have oc-
curred in the porches on the front and rear and in the raising of the gabled
roof over the central block. According to early reports, a 2-story wooden
porch with open top story originally sheltered both front and rear facades.
Around 1840 the front porch was replaced by the present portico, and the ridge
line of the roof was heightened and dormers added, making the third story of
the house habitable. It was during this renovation that the 18"-thick stone
chimneys, which also had to be raised because of the increased pitch of the of
roof, were finished off in brick. In 1926 Admiral Grayson raised the pitch of
the roof over the central block again, retaining the dormers, and thus gained a
full third story. At the same time, Grayson replaced the rear porch with a
flagstone terrace, stabllized the deteriorating fabric with new materials,
land remodeled the interior.

The main block of the front facade is now sheltered by the 1840 portico
which consists of four, evenly-spaced, square red-brick columns rising through
two stories to a wide wooden entablature. The pitched roof of the portico is
Eontinuous with that over the main block. A low gabled wall projecting out

it each corner of the main block may be a vestige of the former 2-story porch.
The front entrance in the center of the main block is a six-panelled wooden

door, with four sidelights on each side, surmounted by a large elliptical fan+
light and stone arch., Flanking the door on either side is a 6/6-light double
hung window with flat lintel and green louvered shutters. The second floor
has three similar windows, while the two gable-ended wooden dormers in the
attic.-have 8/8-1ight deuble-hung wooden sash windows. Each wing has a 6/6-
light double-hung, shuttered window on the principal facade.

On the rear facade, an open flagstone terrace projecting out from the
first story of the central block has ornamental black cast<fron railings and
curving stairs at each end leading down to the basement or garden level, WitHh
the exception of two attic dormers, all of the windows on the rear facade havq
green panelled shutterswhiChpredate the 1926 renovation.

,,,,,

second’; Two doors at the end of the hall led into double parlors at
ISbhﬁ:bacE\M the hows e. The side wings each contained three rooms. The cen-
/i}ﬁf@l entr door now opens into a long rectangular hall (12' x 34') with a
*’q?ubLgﬁturﬂﬂ taircase, which dates from 1926, to the left of the door. The
A: 2 (Continued on Form 10-30Ca)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Highlands a Category
II Landmark of importance which contributes significantly to the cultural
eritage and visual beauty of the District of Columbia. Erected between 1817
Fnd 1827 by Joseph Nourse, the first Register of the Treasury, the Highlands
is one .of Hash,ngtonmswfeu,ex;ant late Georgian country homes. The Nourse
family who owned and lived in the house for a century were prominent Wash-
ingtonians whose friends included Dolly Madison, Thomas Jefferson and other
figures of national importance. In the 20th century, the Highlands was the
residence of Admiral Grayson, President Wilson's personal physician, and
}ater of Allen Dulles, Director of the CIA, It now serves as the adminis-
trative offices of the Sidwell Friends School.
Joseph Nourse emigrated from London in 1769, settled in Virginia, served
in the Revolutionary Army and was appointed by President Washington to serve
as Register of the Treasury in 1789, After having lived in Dumbarton House
(Georgetown) from 1803-13, Nourse moved to the country where the Washington
Cathedral now stands, naming the site Mount Alban, In 1817 he is reported to
have bought 130 acres north of Uriah Forrest's Rosedale estate in Georgetown
Heights (now Cleveland Park) for his son, Charles J., Nourse, as a wedding
gift. Sometime between 1817 and 1827, Joseph Nourse built the Highlands--
named after his daughter-in-law's family home in Buck's County, Pennsylvania.
According to tradition, Thomas Jefferson donated the boxwood springs from
which a great garden flourished. The wistaria which surrounded the house is
reputed to have been a gift of Dr. Caspar Wistar, who brought the sprigs fro&
Japen. In the 1830's Anthony Morris, father of Mrs. Charles Nourse, settled
at the Highlands after having served as U,S., Minister to Spain. Dolly Madi-
son was a close friend of the Morris family and frequently visited the house.
Charles J. Nourse lived in the house until his death in 1851, when the pro-
perty passed to his children, Mary, Rosa, and James Nourse., In 1903, a news-|
paper account described the Highlands estdte as a self-sufficient farm in thd
midst of the fashionable suburbs,
{ Qo January 21, 1913, 2 acres of the property were sold to Thomas Sidwell,
priﬁ al of Sldwell Friends School, with twenty acres remaining with the
\Qurs® family. On January 16, 1920, Admiral Cary T. Grayson, President
soﬁ\w‘personal physician, purchased the house and property, by then re-
uced /@119 acres. The house was extensively restored and the interior modi-
the Graysons by Peabody, Wilson and Brown, architects, in 1926,
yson's death in 1938, his widow leased the house to Count André de
ttach€ to the French Embassy, and later to John Hay Whitney. In 1946

1d another 39,380 square feet to the Sidwell Friends School with eight
(Continued on Form 10-300a)
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7. Description - The Highlands

double parlor was converted by Grayson into one large room (18' x 36'). The
north wing contains Grayson's dining room, kitchen and powder room, while the
south wing contains the library and guest room, The Grayson family living
quarters on the second floor consisted of four bedrooms and two baths, The
attic story has recently been converted to an apartment used as a residence by
the Assistant Headmaster of Friends,

Notable interior details in the parlor include ornamental plasterwork and
two identical black marble fireplaces at the north and south ends of the room.
These are not original to the house. Two 6/6-light double-hung windows over
low double doors flanked by full-length sidelights open onto the rear terrace
and can be used as either doors or windows, The dining room has a fireplace
with garlands and urns that was added in 1926, while the library has a simple
dentilled fireplace surmounted by a large panel, which was moved slightly to
the east in 1926. 1In the basement, the earliest section of the house, an old
fireplace, rough stone walls and brick floor have been preserved of the ori-
ginal kitchen. ' '

After the Sidwell Friends School purchased the’Highlands in 1955, the
house became the administration building for the school, Except for partition-
ing the dining room for offices and converting the third floor attic into a
self-sufficient apartment, the school has made few physical changes to the
house.

8. Significance - The Highlands

acres and the house remaining in her possession, Allen Dulles, Director of the
CIA,leased the Highlands in 1954, On February 22, 1955, Sidwell Friends

School purchased the house and the eight-acre tract for approximately $750,000,
At present, the Highlands, renamed Zartman House by the school, houses the
administrative offices of Friends. Much of the land around the house is now
used for playing fields.
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